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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Dr. Luke A. Port constructed his elegant home in the Queen Anne style in

- 1894, It was designed by ome of Salem's notable architects of the period,
William C. Knighton. Situated within a half mile of the central business dis-
trict of Salem, near the State Capitol, the Port House borders the east side
of Salem's largest park, Bush's Pasture Park. The Queen Anne Revival was the
vogue of the 1880s and 1890s. Houses of this mode were elaborate in texture
and irregular in plan as well as in elevation. The Port House, commonly known|
s "Deepwood",has two stories, a full basement, observatory, veranda and porte
ochere modified for use as a sunporch. The foundation is of native "pioneer"
tone, a sandstone quarried at Pioneer, Oregon, on the Yaguina River near the
ummit of the Coast Range. The exterior is covered with clapboard and shingle
iding in contrasting strata.

The roof line is a complex variety of porch and dormer pediments, gable
nd hipped roofs and a square bell-cast steeple or tower roof atop the observ-
tory. The second story cornice line is embellished by console brackets. The
ressed stone chimney exposed on the south face is treated as an important
eature of the house. It is pierced by a round-arched stained glass window on
he first story and enclosed by a pedimented gable end above the second story.
he chimney stack emerges from the gable and straddles the ridge. The window
penings vary from double-hung sash windows with many small lights, to a bay
indow over which is a solid sash of colored, leaded glass. The walls are
anelled with Eastern oak on the lower floors and cedar on the second floor.

Gardens surrounding the house also display a variety of detail. There
s a formal garden hedged in boxwood and accented by an iron gazebo and ivy-
overed pergolas. A birch-lined walkway, bounded by magnolia and cherry trees
inds through a "secret garden." A carriage house is located to the east of
he house. On the banks of Pringle Creek, which separates "Deepwood" estate
rom the expanse of Bush's Pasture Park, there is a woodland garden, preserved
S a natural area which contains wildflowers and provides the same habitat for
ird life that existed when aboriginals inhabitated the region.

The City of Salem acquired the house andpart of the grounds in 1971. City
fficals hope to raise funds to buy the remaining 2.21 acres of woodland,
hich would make the City's park holdings in the area contiguous. It is plan-
ed that the house will be brought up to code for public use without destroy-
ng its architectural integrity. The building will be used for low-key social
nd recreational purpose: wedding receptions, teas, and bridge tournaments.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Fast becoming an integral part of the City Park System, the Dr. Luke A.
Port House, named ''Deepwood" by subsequent owners, is one of the few homes
of Queen Anne Revival style remaining in Salem. The formal and wildflower
gardens are an attraction for garfeners -and ecologists. Two historical
associations add to the interest and importance of the estate. Architect
William K. Knighton gained local recognition for his work on the house, and
the builder, Dr. Luke A. Port, was a wealthy citizen who led an unusual and
mysterious life.

William C. Knighton served his apprenticeship by working as a draftsman
on the Capitol National Bank Building on Commercial Street in Salem. The
bank was the work of C.S. McNalley and was copied from a design by leading
Philadelphia architect Frank Furness. By 1894 Knighton had designed the
Soldiers’ Home at Roseburg, the Masonic Temple at Corvallis, and the Port
House. Between 1913 and 1917, he served as State Architect, designing the
Supreme Court Building in Salem, the Administration Building at the Univers-
ity of Oregon in Eugene, and the State Hospital in Pendleton. 1In 1922, he
joined partnership with L.D. Howell, and designed Salem High School, the
State Office building in Salem, and the Boys Training School at Woodburn.

Luke Port was born in Sussex, England, and immigrated with his family
to the United States when he was ten years of age. Port grew up in Ohio,
and when the Civil War began he enlisted in an Ohio infantry unit. Follow-
ing his war service he returned to ghio to Nelsonville and continued work
as a "trader." Prior to his military enlistment in 1860, Port owned real
estate in Nelsonville worth $1600, and personmal property warth $500, accord-
ing to U.S. census records. Sometime before 1868, Luke Port journeyed to
Warrensburg, Missouri, a farming center and county seat, a division terminal
for the Missouri Pacific Railroad boasting a woolen mill, iron works and
stone quarries. In 1868, Dunn and Bradstreet estimated Port's wealth at
$10,000 and the 1870 U.S. census takers listed his worth in real and persona
property at $25,000. Dunn and Bradstreet had reported in 1867 that Port wag
a "speculator" whose business dealings were usually "undercover". 1In 1880,
Luke Port moved to California's Chollas Valley, two miles south of the new
railhead at San Diego. He bouglt an elegant home there and planted a variety
of fruit trees and rare ornamentals. The U.S. census of agriculture listed
the value of the house at $11,000 in 1880. Port spent the year 1881 explor-
ing the possibilities of establishing a San Diego-Hawaii steamship company
This research brought him to Oregon where he secured an interest in coal
lands, but he settled briefly in San Francisco, the terminus for the Central

Pacific Rajlroad and the major port on the West Coagt
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PORT (DR. LUKE) HOUSE

2. Location

The Dr. Luke Port House is located in the SE% SE% Sec. 27,
T. 7S, R. 3W of the Willamette Meridian in Marion County, Oregon. It
occupies the westerly portion of Block 3 of the Yew Park Addition to
the town plat of Salem.

8. Significance

Port moved to Salem in 1884 and purchased a drugstore which he
renamed"Port and Son, Drugs'". Using colorful and imaginative adver-
tising, the business grew steadily and was sold in 1887, at which
time Dr. Port built a house in the Italian bracketed style which is stil]
extant but moved to a new location to be restored. When Port's son, Omegd,
was drown in 1887 in a shipwreck in the Atlantic Ocean while on route
to study chemistry in Germany, the Ports sold their Italianate house
and left for Eugope to learn more about the accident.

In September, 1893, the Ports returned to Salem and bought the
six-acre estate which is the subject of the nomination. Port and his
wife moved into the Queen Anne house they had built at a cost of $12,000
to $15,000 in the summer of 1894.

Little more is known about the Port family after 1895 when, following
a characteristically precipitous pattern, they sold the house. Dr. Port
lived at times in Salem until 1902 when he traveled to Ohio and Europe.
He returned to San Diego where he died in 1906.

While in Salem, Dr. Port was active in the 0Odds Fellows, the GAR,
and the Masons. He was interested in city development and a member of
the committee that arranged for building the first bridge across the
Willamette River at Salem. He accumulated a fortune estimated to be in
excess of $100,000. He held $25,000 in stock in the Salem Water Company;
and, by December of 1894, he had $53,602 on deposit at 5 percent interest
in the Capital National Bank of Salem.

"Deepwood" today is one of the interesting buildings surviving
from the 19th century in Salem. It was during subsequent ownership by
Clifford Brown that the gardens were designed by Lord and Schryver, one
of the early and highly-regarded professional landscape architectural
firms at work in the Willamette Valley. Brown's widow, Alice B. Brown,
lived on in the house with second husband Keith Powell through many
decades until the property was acquired by the City in 1971. It was
she who bestowed the name of the estate and developed its character.
Over the years Mrs. Powell occupied the property, few changes were made
to the house. Certain modifications were made to the interior, and the
porte cochere was remodeled for use as a sunporch when the route of the

driveway was changed
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